
Did you know? All Peterborough City Council's meeting agendas are available online or via the 
modern.gov app. Help us achieve our environmental protection aspirations and view this agenda 
online instead of printing it. 

 
EXTRAORDINARY GROWTH, RESOURCES AND 

COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MONDAY 23 OCTOBER 2023 
6.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
Contact: Charlotte Cameron, Senior Democratic Services Officer, 

charlotte.cameron@peterborough.gov.uk, 01733 384628 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration. 
 

 

3. Locality Asset Review – Update 
 

Appendix 2 of this report contains exempt information under Paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 – information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information).  
 
If at any point Members wish to discuss the information contained within 
Appendix 2, a resolution to enter exempt session will be taken.  

 

3 - 30 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

1

mailto:charlotte.cameron@peterborough.gov.uk


 
Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours 
 

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.   The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 

responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.  

 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is  open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 

available at:  
 
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recor
ding&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385 
 
 
 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: Iqbal (Chair), M Jamil (Vice Chair), Farooq, Fenner, J R Fox, Knight, Asif, Sharp, 
Thulbourn, Wiggin and Warren 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: Perkins, Qayyum, Sabir, N Sandford and P Hiller 

 
Non-Statutory Co-opted Members:  

Parish Councillor Mark Ormston, Independent Co-opted Member (non-voting)  
Parish Councillor Terrance Young, Independent Co-opted Member (non-voting) 
 

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Charlotte Cameron on telephone 
01733 384628 or by email –  charlotte.cameron@peterborough.gov.uk  

 

 
 

2

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording&ID=690&RPID=2625610&sch=doc&cat=13385&path=13385
mailto:charlotte.cameron@peterborough.gov.uk


 

 
GROWTH, RESOURCES AND COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM No. 3 

23 OCTOBER 2023 PUBLIC REPORT 

 

Report of: Cecilie Booth, Executive Director of Corporate Services 

Cabinet Member(s) responsible: Councillor Andy Coles, Cabinet Member for Legal, Finance and 
Corporate Services 

Contact Officer(s): Simon Lewis, Service Director Commercial, Property and 
Asset Management 

Felicity Paddick, Head of Estates 

01733 452522 

 

LOCALITY ASSET REVIEW – UPDATE 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
FROM:  Simon Lewis Deadline date: 23 October 2023 

 

 
     It is recommended that Growth, Resources and Communities Scrutiny Committee: 
 

1. Resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting when discussing Appendix 2 on 
the grounds that the item contains exempt information under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of 
Part 1 the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, and that it would not be in the public interest 
for this information to be disclosed as it relates to the financial or business affairs (past or present) 
of the Council. 

 

2. Notes the Locality Asset Review Overview, Recommendations and Financial and Benefits Case 
and makes any comments prior to submission to Cabinet in November. 

 

3.   Notes that Directors will revert back to Growth, Resources and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
in January, subject to Cabinet Approval of the Locality Asset Review, and after a wider 
consultation exercise with operators of the sites and the wider public, with further details of the 
proposed Locality Asset Review recommendations. 

 

4. Notes the Draft Community Asset Transfer Policy contained in Appendix 1 and make any 
comments prior to submission to Cabinet for approval in November. 

 

 
1. ORIGIN OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report was requested following a recommendation made by the Growth, Resources and 

Communities Scrutiny Committee that asked Officers to revisit the information contained within 

the original exempt appendix.  
 

2. PURPOSE AND REASON FOR REPORT  

 
2.1 This report sets out the principles and findings of the localities review of council property including 

community buildings, leisure facilities and libraries. It also includes a proposed draft Community 
Asset Transfer Policy which will support the implementation of the Locality Asset Review. 
 
 
 

3



2.2 This report is for Growth, Resources and Communities Scrutiny Committee to consider under its 
Terms of Reference No. Part 3, Section 4 - Overview and Scrutiny Functions, paragraph No. 2.1 
Functions determined by the Council: 
 
10. Strategic Financial Planning 
 

2.3 There is an exempt annex attached to this report that is NOT FOR PUBLICATION by reason of 
paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 because it relates to 
the financial or business affairs (past or present) of the Council. The public interest test has been 
applied to the information contained within this exempt annex and it is considered that the need 
to retain the information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing it. 

  

3. TIMESCALES  

  

Is this a Major Policy 
Item/Statutory Plan? 

NO If yes, date for 
Cabinet meeting  

 

 

4. BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES  

 
4.1 Overview 

 
The localities review of property assets encompasses all Peterborough City Council’s community 
assets together with some service buildings including libraries, leisure facilities, adjacent green 
spaces, children’s centres and contact centres. It is a combined review supported by officers from 
the council’s Estates Team as well as those officers managing the various services delivered 
from and supported by the assets. In total some 79 assets have been considered as part of the 
review. 
 
The localities review covers the following: 
 
Property Number of 

properties 

Community buildings 36 

Libraries 10 

Leisure facilities (including green spaces and Lido) 7 

Children’s centres (including contact centres) 17 

Others 9 

TOTAL 79 

 
The review captures the current management data held, compliance status and condition 
information for each building and reflects several criteria informing the asset strategy and action 
plan in the report. The following aspects were used to assess each property: 
 

 Location 

 Condition and potential capital costs 

 Management status and leasing arrangements 
 Running costs 

 Compliance 

 Fit for purpose 

 Service requirements 

 Repurpose opportunities. 

 Sustainability for us and for disposal 

 Development and regeneration potential 
 
 
 

4



The data held on the sites contained with the localities review is not complete for every property, 
some are also in need of investment. The stock is therefore generally not in good condition and 
is likely to deteriorate further in the future without some form of intervention. There is also a 
greater need for clarity over the responsibilities for each site's regulatory requirements in terms 
of property management and health and safety.  
 
Prior to undertaking the Locality Asset Review, officers committed to reviewing and refreshing 
the Community Asset Transfer Policy. This was to ensure that it remained relevant and is drafted 
in such a way as to support the Locality Asset Review and repurposing of assets deemed surplus. 
The draft policy is proposed to be included as an addition to the Cabinet submission in November. 
The outcome will be that the Locality Asset Review Report and its recommendations can be 
aligned and supported by a refreshed Community Asset Transfer Policy, a copy of which is 
referenced at Appendix 1.  
 
A report is being prepared which sets out a strategy and action plan for a portfolio of buildings 
reviewed with the intention of reducing the number of assets, producing a disposals and 
repurposing plan for those deemed surplus and making proposals to ensure that the remaining 
assets are fit for purpose.  
 

A list of the proposed sites under consideration to be repurposed is attached as Exempt 
Appendix 2. At this point no decisions have been made regarding which sites may or may 
not be repurposed. If Cabinet approves recommendations to be included in the November 
report, further consultation and engagement with the operators of the sites and public will 
be undertaken before any final decision is taken.  
 
The key deliverables of the review are as follows: 
  

 A smaller portfolio of locality assets. 

 An investment plan to ensure retained assets are fit for purpose to be funded wholly or in 
part via the disposals plan. 

 A review of the overall compliance liabilities for both the council and the occupiers to 
ensure clarity over accountabilities for the repair, maintenance, and compliance 
requirements for the property. 

 A wider engagement plan for the operators of the site and members of the public to inform 
and shape any final recommendations 

 A disposals/repurposing plan for assets deemed surplus to requirements. 

 A report with a localities strategy for the council’s buildings being reviewed and 

establishing the minimum standard service provision within the estate.  

 Identification of opportunities to work with partners in terms of use of assets and service 
provision. 

 A financial appraisal of the options examined, the key risks, next steps and a series of 
recommendations. 
 

The Localities Strategy forms part of the remit of the ‘Sustainable Future City Council’ portfolio 
board. A review of locality assets was referenced in a report to Cabinet in September 2022 in 
relation to the Disposals Plan, with further work to be carried out in preparation of the Asset 
Management Plan to be considered by Cabinet in a future meeting. The report references the 
Cultural Services review and communities partnership and prevention hubs model. 
 
The localities review has involved a number of council departments working together including 
Communities, Leisure, Libraries, Planning and Finance.  The intention is to ensure that the 
council makes best use of its buildings and incorporates the partnership and prevention hubs 
principles.  These are being reviewed as part of taking forward the action plan for the Localities 
Estate. Further conversations are also ongoing with Children’s Services over the Family Hubs 
and other partners in providing a joined-up approach to providing council services in council 
buildings. 
 
 
 

5



Recommendations 

 
The review has resulted in identifying a number of sites that could be potentially disposed, 
repurposed and redeveloped. Using the asset criteria set out in the report it is recommended that 
a number of sites have the potential to be repurposed, sold, or redeveloped. This is not a definitive 
list and further engagement is required with members, operators of the site and the public before 
a final determination can be made. 
 
The review of the locality assets represents the beginning of a process for the buildings and sites 
reviewed. Phase 2 of the review will involve looking at optimising the retained properties in the 
estate.  It is recommended that this includes further discussion with public sector partners on a 
One Public Estate basis and also working with communities, leisure, libraries and other services 
making best use of council assets. 
 

5. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

5.1 The executive summary and draft recommendations form one of the key deliverables arising from 
the Sustainable Future City Council Portfolio Board and will deliver assets that are fit for purpose 
and more financially sustainable. This will enable them to be properly maintained in the longer 
term as well as releasing assets that can either generate capital receipts or can be reallocated 
under the proposed Community Asset Transfer Policy. 
 

6. CONSULTATION 

 
6.1 The provisional outcomes and recommendations of the Locality Asset Review have been shared 

with CLT and political Group Leaders. There has also been a Members’ Open Day where all 
members were invited to discuss the provisional outcomes and recommendations and to put 
forward their own proposals.  
 

6.2 The intention is for the Locality Asset Review Report and recommendations to be issued for 
Cabinet approval in November. Following this further engagement and consultation will take 
place with the public and operators and users of the locality assets. Before a final implementation 
plan is delivered it is proposed to revert back Growth Scrutiny Committee for final comment. 
 

7. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES OR IMPACT  

 
7.1 The anticipated outcome is to incorporate any feedback from the committee prior to submission 

of the report to Cabinet.  
 

8. REASON FOR THE RECOMMENDATION 

 
8.1 The reason for the recommendation is set out in the Executive Summary and draft 

recommendations, these are to deliver: 
 

 A smaller portfolio of locality assets. 

 An investment plan to ensure retained assets are fit for purpose to be funded wholly or in 
part via the disposals plan. 

 
9. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
9.1 The key alternative option would be to not implement a review of locality assets and to retain the 

status quo. This is not a viable option as the Council cannot afford to bring its current estate into 
an acceptable standard and therefore a rationalisation of the assets is required to reduce the 
operational costs and maintenance backlog.  
 
 
 
 
 

6



10. IMPLICATIONS 

 
 Financial Implications 

 
10.1 Financial Case 

 
Based on the proposed initial recommendations set out above information on the income, 
revenue costs, backlog maintenance (information is historic and likely to be higher in real terms) 
and potential value can deliver the following potential benefits.   
 

 Revenue saving of circa £400,000 per annum 

 Loss of circa £100,000 per annum from lettings (although this is expected to be retained 
through relocating the occupiers to other Council buildings). 

 Saving of up to £3.9m of capital required to be spent on the assets to be disposed 

 Capital receipts of circa £4m from disposals which in turn delivers further Revenue 
benefits by reducing the Council’s borrowing and MRP commitments.  

 
It should be noted that there may be some costs incurred to enable specific sites to be repurposed 
and sold, these will be reviewed and determined on a case by case basis, with a view to ensuring 
best value is achieved.   
 

 Legal Implications 

 

10.2 None. 
 
As noted in the Community Asset Transfer Policy 2023, “transfer of community assets may 
usually involve a transfer at less than market value, at a reduced cost, peppercorn rent or free of 
charge.” 
  
The Local Government Act 1972 General Disposal Consent (England) 2003 Circular 06/03 
removes the requirement for authorities to seek specific consent from the Deputy Prime Minister 
and First Secretary of State for any disposal of land where the difference between the unrestricted 
value of the interest to be disposed of and the consideration accepted is £2,000,000 or less. 
 

 Equalities Implications 

 
10.3 None 

 
11. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
 

11.1 None 
 

12. APPENDICES 

 
12.1 Appendix 1 – Draft Community Asset Transfer Policy 

Appendix 2 - Localities Asset Review Report – Summary (Exempt)   
 

 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 1 Version 1 

 

Peterborough City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community Asset Transfer Policy 2023 

 

 

  

9



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 2 Version 1 

Contents 
1. Background - Community assets ................................................................................................ 3 

2. Why is a community asset transfer policy required? ................................................................... 3 

3. Outcomes & Aims ...................................................................................................................... 3 

4. What is Community Asset Transfer? ........................................................................................... 4 

5. What criteria will the council use to consider a Community Asset Transfer? ................................ 6 

6. Legal and Governance................................................................................................................ 8 

7. How will community benefit be maximised? .............................................................................. 8 

8. For how long will leases be granted? .......................................................................................... 9 

9. How will community assets available for transfer be advertised? ................................................ 9 

10.   Property maintenance ............................................................................................................... 9 

Appendices..................................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix 1 - What should the business plan for community asset transfer contain? ........................ 10 

Appendix 2 - Indicative assessment process for community asset transfer applications? .................. 12 

 

  

10



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 3 Version 1 

1. Background - Community assets 
 

A community asset is defined as land and buildings owned or used by the Council or leased or managed 
by community organisations for the benefit of residents and communities. 

Peterborough City Council owns a number of assets that bring about a benefit to communities  

These include, but are not limited to:-  

- Community centres. 
- Other assets that sit within the council’s commercial portfolio that are leased or provided as a 

grant in kind to voluntary organisations that benefit communities and residents due to the specific 
work undertaken by the organisations concerned.  

- Recreational and sports facilities often in parks and open spaces.  
 

As part of developing a sustainable and placed focused approach to asset management Peterborough City 
Council will look to support community groups to come forward with proposals for community asset 
transfers where appropriate. This policy seeks to clarify the process being followed by the Council in 
relation to assets being transferred to community, voluntary or faith-based organisations. 
 

2. Why is a community asset transfer policy required? 
 

There may be times when council owned community assets are , returned to the council by community 

groups, become surplus to requirements, uneconomic to maintain or could be better run by the 
community themselves.   

An asset transfer enables communities to own and manage facilities that may otherwise be closed down 
if the Council is unable to fund them. 

This community asset transfer policy aims to provide a clear approach to the future management of 

these assets that will: 

- define when a community asset transfer is appropriate 

- ensure the process for community asset transfer is transparent  

- apply a consistent approach to the assessment and process of transferring assets in the future, 

focussing on securing social, economic and environmental benefits of the asset  

- ensure the efficient, effective and sustainable management of assets to minimise cost to the 
council and maximise benefit to the community it serves.  

3. Outcomes & Aims 
The Council wants to achieve the following outcomes through a proactive community asset transfer 
programme: 

11



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 4 Version 1 

 

- Community empowerment and benefits to the wider local  community 
- Building of local community capacity through the use of local skills, experience, knowledge and 

time 
- Retaining valued local provision, thus improving local services in times of austerity, while 

contributing to savings 
- Delivering placed based services that address local needs through community led and community 

focused assets 

- Extending the use of a building or land 
- Value for money and the ability to draw in other sources of funding not available to the  council 

- Social enterprise and social wellbeing, including community cohesion 
- Financial viability, long term sustainability and external  investment 
- Delivery of council objectives through other partners 

- A stimulus to partnership working 
 

The council recognises that the increasing emphasis on localism means that it is even more important to 
work closely with the community, voluntary and faith sector to maximise our joint resources and take 

every opportunity to deliver quality services, tackling poverty, protecting vulnerable people and 
encouraging growth and sustainability. Our aims are to: 

 
- Encourage and support the retention of local facilities which are used for a variety of social, 

community and public purposes without the use of council funds in the future – on the basis 

that we are satisfied that the business case for such a transfer is financially viable and sustainable 

in the long term 

- Increase the effectiveness and efficiency of council owned community assets through local  

management 

- Maintain local public facilities through community management 

- Explore innovative ways of enhancing existing community facilities  

- Support the development of social enterprises that clearly demonstrate returns to the local  
community 

4. What is Community Asset Transfer? 
Community asset transfer (CAT) is the transfer of land or buildings from the council to a third sector 

organisation. CAT supports community empowerment by enabling land and buildings and services to be 

retained or transformed for public benefit. 

Community asset transfer has the potential to achieve a number of objectives: 

- to form long-term partnerships with third sector organisations 

- providing assets for wider voluntary and community sector use  

- maximising community benefit 

- minimising financial liability for the council in the future  
- supporting the building of social capital. 

12



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 5 Version 1 

Community Asset Transfer can take place in different forms including through:  

- a management agreement 

- a licence to occupy 

- a short lease 

- a long lease 
- freehold 

Community Asset Transfer usually involves a transfer at less than market value, at a reduced cost, 

peppercorn rent or free of charge. The level of subsidy applied to the asset transfer, will be determined 
by the social, economic or environmental benefits generated by the transfer and the value of the asset.  

Community Asset Transfer can apply to community buildings, community facilities and also other 
community venues owned by the council. 

The Council recognises that CAT comes with risks and liabilities to both the Council as well as the third 

sector. Therefore, the process must include a robust framework to assess and manage risks so that all 
parties can make informed decisions. 

A transparent framework is essential to enable the fair and equitable transfer of assets, therefore this 

policy should be based on the following set of principles, which should be followed by both PCC and 

Third Sector:-   

 Clearly communicated timescales and decision making 

 Partnership with Third Sector and encouragement of collaboration between community groups 

 Inclusivity of provision so that the assets remain genuinely open and accessible to all sections of 

the community irrespective of their faith, culture, gender, sexuality, religion, political view or 

other protected characteristics.  

 Decisions will be based on clear financially sustainable proposals, robust business plans 

(Appendix 1) and sound, evidence-based rationale for  the transfer of assets – each proposal will 

be based on individual merits 

 Any proposed transfer of asset must promote social, economic or environmental well-being and 

support the aims and priorities of the council  

 Asset transfer will deliver agreed benefits to local people 

 Proactive consideration will be given for the co-location of services supported by dual use 

agreements 

 Transfer decisions will not be made on a ‘first come first served’ basis but on a ‘best fit’ basis 

 An ‘asset lock’ will be included in the terms of a transfer to ensure that the building remains for 
community benefit and use. 

 

13



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 6 Version 1 

5. What criteria will the council use to consider a Community Asset Transfer? 
In the interest of supporting a vibrant local civil society sector, the council will consider and prioritise the 

transfer of assets to local organisations. Therefore, it is unlikely that the council will prioritise transfer of 

assets to organisations whose remit is regional or nationwide. The prioritisations will be based on a 

geographical analysis of the community-based properties within an area and the needs of that area. The 

transfer of assets may be to either long established, stable, and secure formal organisations or newly 

formed community-based groups provided they can demonstrate they have the necessary expertise and 

experience to manage the asset. 

 
The council will consider transferring assets in the following circumstances: 

- Assets must be in the ownership of the council 

- They are located where there is benefit to the community in having services delivered from the 

asset  

- The asset has been identified in savings proposals to be surplus or where there is no clear 

rationale for the retention within PCC due to cost of maintenance, condition of the building or 

low levels of usage 

- The proposed use will deliver a direct community benefit  

- The Council can satisfy itself that the terms of the CAT lease are not financially detrimental. 

- Disposals at less than best consideration will follow relevant legislation, Government guidance 

and the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) document “Strategic Public Sector Property 

Asset Management” (September 2021) and state the best consideration that would otherwise 

have been received. 
 

The council will not consider transferring assets in the following circumstances: 

- Assets which have been identified as having a potential significant capital receipt, or where a 

significant amount of revenue income would be lost. 

- Assets which have been identified as being required for strategic, planning or 

redevelopment/regeneration reasons. 

- Transfers to individuals or businesses to be used purely as a vehicle for commercial ventures. 

- Transfers solely to individuals 

- Where transfers contravene subsidy or procurement rules 

- Assets which may be used solely for religious or political  purposes/activities. 

 
The criteria is strict to ensure that any successful transfer is sustainable, will be of benefit to local 

communities as well as the third sector organisation and will instil long term reassurance for the 
community which it serves. 

14



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 7 Version 1 

Any application received will be assessed through a staged process (Appendix 2), starting with an 

expression of interest. Following assessment of this, organisations will be invited to submit a detailed 

application. Applicants must demonstrate how they meet the following criteria:-  

 

 

 

15



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 8 Version 1 

 

 Clear benefits to the council, its aims and priorities, the community-based group and the 

wider community.  

 Demonstrate that it will continue to be used to support local community-based services and 

activities. 

 Demonstrate strong and robust governance arrangements, including how local people will be 

involved in decision making in relation to the building and its use . 

 Evidence of a track record in delivering services and/or managing property (if a new group 

evidence of this track record linked to management committee members and/or staff) 

 Have in place a robust and sustainable business plan, for a 5-year period or show the 

willingness to create an acceptable plan within a specified time frame before the building is 
transferred.  

6. Legal and Governance 
Community asset transfer involves the transfer of assets, usually at less than Market Value, as a means 

to further local social, economic and / or environmental objectives.  Section 123 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 requires that any disposals achieve best consideration and applies to the 

disposal of any interest in land and property. However, this was substantially amended under the Local 

Government Act 1972 General Disposal Consent Order (England) 2003, which gives Local authorities 

greater freedom to dispose of any interest in land at less than best consideration without the specific 

consent of the Secretary of State, where it could be demonstrated that they promoted the economic, 

social and environmental well-being of the area; and provided that the unrestricted undervalue of the 

asset to be disposed of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed £2,000,000 (two million 
pounds). 

7. How will community benefit be maximised? 
To ensure that the property delivers maximum community benefit, the organisation concerned will 

need to ensure that the premises are used primarily for community-based activities that directly 
benefit: 

- the local community  

- residents of Peterborough. 

Where appropriate, the building should be available for hire for general community use including 

weekends with priority given to local groups and grass-roots organisations. This requirement will form 
part of the transfer arrangements. 

The arrangements will also, where appropriate provide opportunities for the organisations to be able  

to sub-let. These arrangements may require approval from the Council to ensure their interests are 
protected and no rights are claimed by the sub-lessee. 

16



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 9 Version 1 

The focus will be a flexible approach to the development of lease arrangements to maximise the 
benefit to the voluntary organisation, the council and wider community.  

8. For how long will leases be granted? 
The council will consider the specific needs of the third sector organisation, the condition of the asset 

and the requirements of any funders. The length of the lease will be based on: 

- the business plan 

- the capacity of the organisation to manage the asset 

- financial capacity 

- any future requirements for the asset by the council  
- the condition of the asset. 

Once granted, leases can be extended or restructured at a future stage, to meet the changes to the 
organisation’s activities or circumstances. 

Community asset transfer leases will be accompanied by a service agreement that will define the 

expected benefits of the community asset including any requirement for use of the asset by local 

residents for locally organised activities or use as a polling station. This may include the hours the asset 
is made available to local communities.  

Leases will contain clauses that prevent the asset being assigned or sold on for unintended financial 
gain and the loss of the community agreed benefits.  

Leases will also contain suitable clauses to ensure the return of the asset to the council if the terms of 

the service agreement are not met, or in the case of dissolution, insolvency or corruption. 

9. How will community assets available for transfer be advertised? 
The Council will advertise the availability of community assets through the council’s website, various 

information networks available to the council and by directly notifying voluntary and community 
sector organisations. 

10. Property maintenance 
The lease will define responsibility for maintenance and repairs, insurance, and all outgoings on the 

property but the assumption that the responsibility will lie with the organisation party to any lease 
agreement. 

The Council will provide information that it holds on the condition of the property. This assessment 

will be provided as a guide and the future tenant should carry out their own checks, as the property 

may have deteriorated further since it was last surveyed.  

The council will review this policy at least once every three years. 

  

17



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 10 Version 1 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - What should the business plan for community asset transfer contain? 
- full details of the services and activities to be provided from the asset including any 

partnerships or co-location plans with other organisations  

- evidence of the management capacity and experience of the bidding organisation to utilise 

and develop the asset 

- detailed evidence that use of the asset is financially sustainable over the life of the proposed 

tenancy and will not incur future financial liabilities for the council; the council will assist by 

making relevant information and data available on request 

- details of the anticipated benefits that the asset will produce and how these will be measured 

and evaluated 

- details of the type of asset transfer and lease terms sought 

- evidence of support from council officers, councillors, other voluntary organisations, local 
stakeholders  

Assessment criteria 

Organisations (or lead organisation where there is a consortium or partnership applying) are required 

to meet the council’s criteria for commissioning. If these criteria are not met, no further consideration 

will be given to an application.  

The business case assessment criteria will be made up of three sections:  

- Organisational criteria (see notes below) 

- Social value assessment (based on the councils’ Social Value Framework) 

- Activity specific assessment 

The assessment forms for both expressions of interest and business cases are available on request.  

Examples of organisational criteria that might be included are found in the table below. This is not an 

exhaustive list and at all times compliance with the organisational criteria will be proportionate and 
relevant to the size and value of the asset and the length of term of the asset transfer.  

Provider’s organisational criteria  

Management You must have appropriate governance arrangement in place, hold regular committee 

meetings, including an annual general meeting; have a current business plan or demonstrate that one 

can be developed for the organisation. 

Financial systems You must comply with all financial and accounting requirements of charity and/or 

company law and follow good practice in relation to internal financial controls. If you are a new 
organisation, you should demonstrate how you will implement good financial systems in future. 

 

18



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 11 Version 1 

Equal opportunities 

You must have a written equal opportunities/diversity policy and code of practice that comply with 
current relevant legislation. 

Insurance  

Your organisation must have adequate insurance cover for activities, events, staff, premises, 

equipment, vehicles including: 

Public liability; employer’s liability cover if staff are employed; property and equipment insurance.  

Criminal records checks 

You must ensure and have evidence that all staff and volunteers working with children and vulnerable 

adults have been vetted through the disclosure and barring service. DBS checks should only be 
requested for eligible roles and not for all staff if it is not needed.  

Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults 

Organisations working with children and vulnerable adults must have safeguarding children and adult’s 

policy and procedure in place. Staff and volunteers working with children and vulnerable adults must 
be appropriately trained. Evidence of these policies wil l be requested. 

Equality  

Detailed knowledge of the city and an understanding of how to apply that knowledge to engage / work 

with / deliver services in the city. Evidence of activities and services being designed to be accessible to 

as many residents as possible.  

Cost  

The ability for the organisation to meet any rental payments, pay external and internal repairs, 

insurance and utility costs. Evidence of a clear budget with income and expenditure expectations 
should be provided for the life of the proposed tenancy. 

  

19



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 12 Version 1 

Appendix 2 - Indicative assessment process for community asset transfer applications?  
Detail and processes included in each stage are below  

Stage 1 – Advertising of Community Asset Transfer opportunity and request for expressions of interest 

- Maximum of 4 weeks 

Stage 2 – Review of expressions of interest received by council officers. Successful applicants informed 

- 3 – 6 weeks depending on volume  

Stage 3 – Selected organisations to compile business case  

- 4 – 6 weeks 

Stage 4 – Business case assessment by council officers and senior staff.  

- Agreement in principle for one applicant 
- 4 – 6 weeks 

Stage 5 – Professional advice and council report 

- 4 – 6 weeks 

Stage 6 – Lease agreement and completion 

- Maximum of 6 weeks 

Ongoing - Asset transfer review  

- Annual review of the service agreement targets and measure benefits  

- Where applicable, 5-yearly renewal of the service agreement 

  

20



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 13 Version 1 

Breakdown by stage 

Stage One 

Once a building is identified as suitable for community asset transfer it will be advertised as open for 
Expressions of Interest.  

This will be done by: 

- Placing an advert on Peterborough City Council’s website 

- Letters will be sent to residents local to the building 

- Community newsletters will include the opportunity (if you do not receive Peterborough city 

council’s community newsletters please email xxxxxxx 

- An open day will be held at the building in this time for organisations to inspect the building.  

- During this window, the webform can be used to submit an Expression of  Interest in leasing 
the property (guidance available).  

Stage Two 

Council officers will review all Expressions of Interest against identified criteria (see the Expression of 

Interest guidance). Officers may ask for meetings with organisations to clarify points within the 
submitted form. 

Organisations that satisfy the criteria for use will be informed by letter and invited to submit a more 
detailed business plan for their use of the centre.  

Stage Three 

The business case can be submitted in any relevant format but will need to  reference: 

- Organisational objectives and aims 

- Evidence of the organisations previous impact and service delivery  

- Specifics around the use of the building and what services/activities will be delivered from it 

- Robust financial planning including details of any planned investment into the building and 

evidence of current financial capacity 

- Evidence of the community need being address by the organisations plans and demonstrable 

community endorsement 

- Evidence that new services and activities would not duplicate existing provision in the local 

area 

Not essential but desired: 

- Evidence of partnership working with other organisations  

- Detail of the evaluation processes which will be used to measure the outcomes of the 
buildings’ use 

21



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 14 Version 1 

During this business case development phase, organisations may request a meeting with council 
officers to discuss their draft plans before submission.  

Stage Four 

All business cases will be reviewed by council officers and relevant professional for suitability.  

Applications will be assessed against the criteria laid out in the Community Asset Transfer policy 

document and will reflect the social value to the city of each application. These will include:  

- benefit to local residents 

- benefits to the council 

- sustainability of the financial plans 

- whether applications duplicate existing provision 

- demonstrable community support 
- demonstrable inclusive, impartial and equitable approach.  

Each organisation will be invited to discuss their application with officers and relevant professionals to 

elaborate on any points and review any questions.  

An “in principle” decision will be taken by the service Director. The successful group will be informed 
in writing.  

Local residents will be informed of the decision and asked to comment as part of the subsequent 
report.  

Stage Five 

If needed, legal and profession advice will be sought by office rs at this stage. The successful “in 

principle” organisations’ business case will be presented as a details report to the council ’s corporate 
leadership team (CLT) and portfolio holder. 

CLT will also decide whether cabinet are required to authorise the award of the Community Asset 
Transfer at this stage. If it is a report will be submitted to cabinet for member approval.  

Once fully approved, written confirmation will be sent to the successful organisation. Should approval 

not be awarded, the asset will be reviewed and, if appropriate, re-advertised for further expressions 

of interest. 

Stage Six 

At the stage Peterborough Council’s Estates Team will work with the successful organisation to 

determine the full content of the lease, the rent and the length of the lease. This will be a standard 

lease that will be used for each and any CAT. Where works are necessary to a building prior to 

occupation, an agreement for lease will be granted pending the outcome of those works before a lease 
is granted. 

22



 
APPENDIX 1 

CAT Policy 15 Version 1 

When both parties are happy with the heads of terms in the lease, the Estates Team will ensure the 
building is ready to be transferred and the organisation will be given the keys to the building.  

Ongoing 

Leases will be reviewed as a minimum every 5 years although shorter terms may be agreed at the lease 

stage.  

Should there be any agreed outcomes and evaluation on the use of the building, the organisation will 

be expected to supply this to the council in line with the agreed arrangements. These may include 

usage statistics, service evaluations, or other key indicators and will be clearly laid out in the service 

level agreement. 

23



This page is intentionally left blank

24



Document is Restricted

25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Locality Asset Review - Update
	Appendix 1 - Draft Community Asset Transfer Policy 2023
	EXEMPT Appendix 2 -  Locality Asset Review Summary


